Q" Neath Port Talbot
== (astell-nedd Port Talbot AGENDA

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
1.30 PM - MONDAY, 15 JANUARY 2018

COMMITTEE ROOMS 1/2 - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE

PART 1
1.  Toreceive any declarations of interest from Members.

Report of the Chief Executive

2.  Senior Management Arrangements (Pages 3 - 16)

Report of the Head of Streetcare Services

3.  Amendment to Staffing Structure of Highways and Drainage
Section (Pages 17 - 24)

4.  Minor Staffing Changes in the Highways and Drainage Service
(Pages 25 - 30)

Report of the Director of Social Services Health and Housing

5. Urgency Action 0416 - Interim Management Arrangements in Social
Services, Health and Housing (Pages 31 - 34)

6.  Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the
Chairman pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

7.  Access to Meetings - to resolve to exclude the public for the
following items pursuant to Section 100A (4) and (5) of the Local
Government Act 1972 and the relevant Exempt Paragraphs of Part
4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act.




PART 2

Private Report of the Head of Human Resources

8.  Creation of Permanent Grade 8 Training Officer (Pages 35 - 44)
Q. Local Government Pay 2018 / 2019 Update (Pages 45 - 58)

Private Report of the Principal Human Resources Manager

10. Proposal to introduce Job Evaluation to all employees within the
Council (Pages 59 - 80)

S.Phillips
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Tuesday, 9 January 2018

Committee Membership:

Chairperson: Councillor D.Jones

Vice Councillor S.Paddison
Chairperson:

Members: Councillors R.Davies, E.V.Latham, S.Miller,
S.Bamsey, N.T.Hunt, S.A.Knoyle, D.Cawsey,
R.G.Jones, S.Renkes and A.J.Taylor

Non Voting Councillors P.D.Richards, C.Clement-Williams,
Member: A.Wingrave, A.R.Lockyer, P.A.Rees and
D.W.Davies



Agenda Item 2

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
15 JANUARY 2018
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
MATTER FOR DECISION
SENIOR MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL
SECTION A

Purpose of Report

1. Recommendations on proposed changes to senior management
arrangements/structures to respond to changing Council priorities,
budgetary pressures and other factors.

Background/Context

2. On 28 September 2017, Council adopted the Corporate Plan 2017-22
reflecting the priorities of the administration which took office following
the local government elections in May 2017. To recap, the Plan is
based upon three Well-being objectives as follows:

e To improve the well-being of children and young people “giving all
of our children and young people the best start in life and helping
them to be the best they can be”,

e To improve the well-being of all adults who live in the county
borough: “living a good life and ageing well”, and

e To develop the local economy and environment so that the well-
being of people can be improved: “Neath, Port Talbot and
Pontardawe will be a vibrant and healthy place to live, work and
spend our recreational time”.

3. The financial challenges faced by the authority over this Council term
have been well documented in a series of reports to Council, Cabinet,

Page 3



Scrutiny Committees and Member seminars over the last six months
or so’. Essentially — and based upon on current estimates — we will
need to find an extra c.£55 million of savings between 1 April 2019
and 2022 on top of the circa £87 million of cuts already delivered
since 2010 and planned for 2018/19. As things stand at the time of
writing, we frankly do not know where we are going to find £55m.

4. Thus going forward we need “big ticket” savings and the management
structures to deliver them. On this theme, senior officers are
preparing a report for Members on the future direction of the Council
and models of service delivery. That will be tabled in the spring; but
the picture is stark. If we don’t deliver these savings we will inevitably
be looking at significant cuts to front line services including social
care and schools as well as compulsory redundancies as the end of
the Workforce Agreement on 31 March 2018 and national pay
demands add new budgetary pressures. For example, at the time of
writing, the national pay offer tabled by the Local Government
Association (LGA) last month seems likely to increase the cost to this
Council by circa £1m for 2018/19 alone.

5. Separately, the Wales Audit Office and the Workforce Partnership
Council are pressing local authorities for what they describe as
Workforce Strategies including succession planning — and some
senior officers will be retiring in the next two years or so. This work is
well advanced and will be put before Members shortly (see
recommendation 3 below).

6. The question therefore arises as to how best the Council should
adapt and re-align its senior management structures to meet these
requirements. In terms of context, there are a number of key drivers
of change going forward. These include:

¢ A transformational shift to digital public services: Technology is
radically changing the way public services are delivered. Digital
services are what the citizen increasingly expects; it is a journey
upon which the Council has already embarked but there is much
more to do as local authorities automate processes, move
transactions and services online and migrate Council systems to
different formats. The next stage of our Digital Strategy will also be

! Notably, the Cabinet report of 8 November 2017 seeking authority to consult on draft Budget
proposals for 2018/19

Page 4



put to Members shortly with the aim of delivering substantial
savings over time as well as improving services.

e |ntegrated Services: increasingly, we must escape silos and work
across boundaries (internal and external) to deliver improving
services and better outcomes. Early Intervention and Prevention
programmes are a good example spanning Social Services,
Education, Community Safety and other services including those
delivered by wider partnerships. Also, the Welsh Government has
set out its approach to local government reform underpinned by
‘systematic and mandatory regional working” through greater
collaboration. The fine detail is yet to be determined in advance of
legislation; but it will be necessary to make an investment (people
and money) to respond if the agenda proves to have real
substance. As currently configured, the Council is not best
equipped or organised to resource this burgeoning agenda. The
pressures are already clear in terms of the activity flowing from
recent legislation including the Social Services & Well-Being
(Wales) Act 2014 (specifically the Population Assessment); the
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the
imposition of the Welsh Language Standards. This has placed an
extra and heavy workload on the corporate strategy/services
functions in particular.

e Whilst basically positive, the Wales Audit Office’s most recent
Annual Improvement Report (AIR) (reported to Council on 18
October 2017) identified some areas where the Council needed to
focus improvement, including inconsistent evaluation of the impact
of service changes; the further development of our strategic
approach to income generation and the delivery timescales for
some savings plans which were not judged to be entirely realistic.

7. The proposals in this report are designed directly or indirectly to meet
all of these challenges and others (at least in part).

SECTION B

Recent Developments & Proposals

8. The Council made permanent appointments to the role of Director of
Social Services, Health & Housing — but in doing so, created another

senior vacancy (see paragraph 9 below) - and to the Head of Legal
Services (and Monitoring Officer) posts on 4 and 14 December 2017

Page 5



respectively. This marked the start of a transition phase to new
management arrangements and personnel.

9. As regards the Director of Social Services, Health & Housing post,
the operational and financial challenges faced by social services
across Wales remain acute and the new Director needs space to
focus effort on this area to the exclusion of (arguably) more
secondary duties. The former Director's Annual Report (submitted to
Council on 18 October 2017) outlined strong foundations in both
Children and Adult Services; but we cannot be complacent. These
services are, by their nature, high risk and challenging — and recent
events in a neighbouring authority provide a salutary lesson that
things can go wrong quickly. Moreover, as the new Director is an
internal promotion, the immediate priority is to secure a replacement
as two Heads of Service in this Directorate represent an irreducible
minimum in my view. This report seeks authority to do so.

10. It should also be noted that the market for quality senior staff in
Social Services is a very competitive one in Wales and beyond. Thus
it may prove necessary to pay a market supplement to attract the
right candidate(s). This could have a bearing on the financial
implications set out at paragraph 23 below. However, this contains a
proposal to offset any additional costs (see footnote 3 specifically).

11. There may also be increasing synergies between the Council’s
residual housing functions and policy areas within the Environment
Directorate. These include planning/land use, regeneration and street
scene — including the relationship with Tai Tarian (NPT Homes as
was). Thus it is proposed to transfer some of the housing functions to
that Directorate on a basis to be determined.

12. Against the background outlined in Section A above, it is also
proposed to create a new post of Assistant Chief Executive & Chief
Digital Officer reporting to the Chief Executive. This post would be
senior to a Head of Service; but junior to a Corporate Director. The
salary scales and a full list of proposed responsibilities are at
Appendix 1. As this proposal falls outside the scope of the Standing
Orders (Wales) Amendment Regulations 2014 — see Section C below
— it is proposed to advertise the post on an internal basis only with
the working assumption that, if an appointment was made, the
successful candidate’s post would be deleted and other duties
redistributed as necessary.

Page 6



13.

14.

15.

16.

During the consultation process leading to the production of this
report, the Head of ICT has confirmed his intention to retire by March
2019. Upon his retirement, it is proposed to delete this post and
transfer most of the current responsibilities to the proposed new post
of Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Digital Officer. The procurement
function would transfer to Legal Services.

In addition to providing more of a focus on core responsibilities for
the Director of Social Services & Health, these proposals do likewise
for the Director of Finance & Corporate Services. The Director’s first
priority is obviously the financial position of the Council; but his
Directorate is increasingly required to engage in complex negotiations
and/or provide financial advice in respect of them across a range of
Council services and functions. Recent examples include the City
Deal, the renegotiation of the care homes contract with Pobl and
future waste disposal arrangements. Thus transferring the line
management responsibility for ICT elsewhere reduces that burden.

The Head of Financial Services is also due to retire in 2018.
However, in my judgement this post is essential in terms of
discharging our statutory duties around Audit, Scrutiny and,
particularly, the preparation of the Council’s Annual Accounts. In
other words, the present incumbent needs to be replaced and this
report seeks authority to advertise the post later this year.

There are also three other aspects to these proposals:

e First, in the past the Welsh Government has promoted the notion
of shared posts between Councils — Chief Executives and other
senior officers. Such ideas never found favour with Members here
(or elsewhere in Wales for the most part) and are not practical in
my view. Where they have been tried in England and Wales, they
have almost always failed in short order in authorities of any size
or scale (e.g. the Tri-Borough arrangements in London). Similarly
in Wales, there have been limited attempts to share posts with
Local Health Boards e.g. the previous Head of Adult Services was
employed one day a week by ABMU; but the benefits proved very
marginal. It is possible that these ideas will re-surface as part of
local government reform; but they have been discarded in this
analysis. The bottom line is that it is neither realistic nor fair to
expect people to do one and a half or two jobs effectively.

Page 7



e Second, the Council may have need of time limited interim
management support from time to time. Some will say that we
should not be using “consultants”; but | would argue that this is to
miss the point for several reasons. It is neither reasonable nor
realistic to expect senior managers to take on additional pieces of
work on top of the day job beyond a point we have now reached; in
some cases the necessary experience/skill set may not exist within
the Council and perhaps there is also a reluctance in some
quarters within the Council to fully embrace the need for different
models of service delivery and income generation (an external
perspective can provide that momentum). In any event, we cannot
afford to recruit permanent staff at this level, so if judiciously
deployed this is a more efficient way of proceeding. What is certain
Is that if we do not deliver the “big ticket” savings alluded to above,
we face significant cuts to services and job losses in future years.
Thus this report seeks delegated authority, within the Council’'s
Contracts Procedure Rules, in consultation with Cabinet Members,
to utilise external expertise up to a limit of £50,000 per annum.

e Third, linked to — but not directly impacting upon — these proposals
Is the case for a job evaluation exercise on senior management
posts in the Council. Section 3.4.9 of the Financial Regulations
section of the Constitution stipulates that the Head of Paid Service
is responsible for providing overall management to staff and for
ensuring that there is proper use of the evaluation or other agreed
systems for determining the remuneration of a job. However, as all
senior managers have a potential financial/pecuniary interest in
such an exercise, a separate report is being commissioned from
an officer who has no such interests. That advice will be submitted
to Members entirely separately and, if agreed, the exercise will be
conducted independently and reported to Members on that basis.

SECTION C
Legal Implications/Process for Change

17. The Council’'s Constitution at paragraph 11.02(a) requires the
Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) to “report to Council on the
manner in which the discharge of the Council’s functions is co-
ordinated, the number and grade of officers required for the discharge
of functions and the organisation of officers”. Annex D of the
Constitution vests the decision making responsibilities in the
Personnel Committee by virtue of section 112 of the Local

Page 8



Government Act 1972 (incorporating also the Employment Procedure
Rules of the Council). This report seeks to discharge that obligation.

18. There are several aspects to be considered in order to make
changes to the current senior management structure. These are
based in statute, most recently the Standing Orders (Wales)
Amendment Regulations 2014. Essentially, a consultation process is
required with the Trade Unions and individuals. Corporate Directors
and others were consulted individually and collectively in formulating
these proposals. The Trade Unions have been sent this report and
offered a meeting to discuss the proposals. It will also be tabled at the
Staff Council meeting on 22 January.

19. As regards the proposed Assistant Chief Executive and Chief
Digital Officer post, the Personnel Committee is required to set the
duties, terms and conditions of employment for a Chief Officer post
(again, see Appendix 1). There is also a requirement to consult the
Independent Remuneration Panel in Wales (IRP) under the Section
143A of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 which sets out
the functions of the IRP to make recommendations about any aspect
of a Council’s pay policy which relate to the salary of the Council’s
Head of Paid Service. However, the Local Government (Wales) Act
2015 temporarily extends the powers of the IRP to cover salaries
payable to all Chief Officers. The IRP must therefore be consulted.

20. It should also be noted that the 2014 Regulations require posts
over £100k salary to be publicly advertised. However, should
Members agree to create the proposed Assistant Chief Executive and
Chief Digital Officer post on the basis outlined in Appendix 1, then this
aspect of the Regulations would not apply. The appointment to any
new role would be made by the Special Appointments Committee and
Council under the Council’s Constitution (see paragraph 17 above).

21. For the avoidance of doubt, these proposals do not involve the
redundancy or displacement of any officer. Thus the process for
consultation in potential redundancy situations; the requirement of the
JNC Terms and Conditions of Employment in this regard and, in this
specific context also, the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales)
Regulations 2006, as amended in 2014, do not apply. However, if
agreed, these proposals would result in the number of heads of

Page 9



service being reduced from 14 to 13 during the coming financial year
and then to 12 early in the following financial year®.

Financial Implications

22. The starting point is that any review of the senior management
structure should be contained within the existing budgets and
produce savings over time. The table below sets out the financial
implications of the proposals contained in this report. It is split into two
elements: a transition phase which is essentially 2018/19 — but
incorporating some savings already secured in the current financial
year - and a full year impact (from 1 April 2019).

23. This analysis illustrates that the savings accruing from the

proposed changes would be marginal during the transition phase®;
but significant and recurring from 2019/20 onwards.

Financial Summary Transition | Full Year
Period Impact
2018-19 2019-20

£'000 £'000

Savings accruing from Director of Social -44.3 -44.3

Services permanent appointment

Savings from discontinuing Honorarium -9.9 -9.9

Assistant Chief Executive & Digital Officer cost 131.1 131.1

at scale maximum

Deletion of Other Head of Service Post -109.0 -109.0

Deletion of Head of ICT Post 0.0 -109.0

Proposed Delegation for External Support 50.0 50.0

Savings re appointments at bottom of scale

Director of Social Services @ Min -11.3

Assistant Chief Executive & Digital Officer @ -12.0

Min

Assistant Chief Executive & Digital Officer -2.5

appointed 1 July 2018

Total -7.9 -91.1

?In purely financial terms, the figures could be regarded as 13 to 12 to 11 because the Head of the
South Wales Trunk Road Agency (SWTRA) is funded under the arrangement with the Welsh

Government.

% But see paragraph 10 above. If a Market Supplement does prove necessary, there should be
adequate provision in the Directorate’s base budget to pay for it; but should the marginal savings for

2018/19 be wiped out, it is proposed to offset that cost by reducing expenditure on interim

management capacity should Members agree that proposal — see the second bullet point of

paragraph 16 above and recommendation 7 below.

Page 10




24. An Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form has also been
completed and the impact on protected characteristics (or specific
groups) has been assessed as low.

Reasons for Recommendations

25. These proposals are designed to ensure that the Council’s senior
management team is resourced to deliver the objectives outlined in
the Corporate Plan; to discharge the Council’s statutory obligations
and meet the financial and operational challenges which are ahead.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members, subject to the required consultation with Trade Unions
and the IRP:

1. Agree in principle to the establishment of a new post of Assistant
Chief Executive & Chief Digital Officer, including terms and
conditions, and authorise the Chief Executive to advertise the post on
an internal only basis as described in this report and at Appendix 1,

2. Agree in principle the deletion of the post of Head of ICT upon the
retirement of the current post holder with his duties to be incorporated
into the responsibilities of the proposed Assistant Chief Executive &
Chief Digital Officer; and

3. Note the intention to invite Members to confirm these decisions at a
subsequent meeting of the Personnel Committee should the
consultation be successfully completed. It would also be the intention
of officers to bring to that meeting the Council’s new Workforce
Strategy (see paragraph 5 above) for consideration/approval.

That Members also:
4. Authorise the Chief Executive to advertise a Head of Service post in
the Social Services, Health & Housing Directorate immediately to

replace the new Director to include an appropriate market supplement
if necessary;

Page 11



5. Authorise the Chief Executive to advertise the post of Head of
Financial Services in due course to ensure that the current post
holder is replaced upon his retirement;

6. Authorise the Chief Executive to transfer, as necessary, some of the
Council’s residual housing responsibilities from the Social Services,
Health and Housing Directorate to the Environment Directorate on a
basis to be determined in consultation with the Leader of Council, the
Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Equality and the other
Cabinet Members concerned. Any new arrangements to be
subsequently notified to the Personnel Committee as soon as
practicably possible following their implementation;

7. Agree a delegation to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the
Leader of Council and the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services
and Equality, to utilise external support where necessary up to a limit
of £50,000 in any one financial year within the scope of the Council’s
Contracts Procedure Rules; and

8. Delegate to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of
Council, the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Equality
plus other relevant Cabinet Members (depending upon the functions
at issue), authority to re-align responsibilities and line management
reporting arrangements within and between Directorates as a
consequence of these proposals. Any new arrangements to be
subsequently notified to the Personnel Committee as soon as
practicably possible following their implementation.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Proposed Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Digital Officer
(functions/responsibilities and terms & conditions)

Background Documents

Corporate Plan 2017-2022

Page 12



Officer Contacts

Steven Phillips, Chief Executive, Tel: (01639) 763306, Email:
s.phillips@npt.qov.uk

Sheenagh Rees, Head of HR, Tel: 01639 763315, Email:
s.reesS@npt.gov.uk

Page 13


mailto:s.phillips@npt.gov.uk
mailto:s.rees5@npt.gov.uk

Appendix 1

ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE & CHIEF DIGITAL OFFICER

Job Description

Lead responsibility for the development, implementation and monitoring
of the Council’s:

Corporate Plan;

Performance Management System;

Digital by Choice Strategy and co-ordinate the digitalisation of
Council services across the authority including digital exclusion;
Strategic Equality Plan (under the Equality Act 2010);

Welsh Language Plan (Welsh Language Standards);

response to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015;

Older Persons Strategy;

Compliance with the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
including associated policies and programmes of work including
the corporate relationship with the Wales Audit Office in relation to
their performance audit functions;

Statutory duties as set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 as
amended by the Police and Justice Act 2006;

Statutory duties under the regional CONTEST Board set out in the
Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015.

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence
Strategy and ensure the Council’s statutory duties set out in the
VAWDASYV Act 2015.

In addition, lead responsibility for:

Page 14



Member support and associated systems, securing the efficient
and effective operation of the Council’s democratic processes;
managing the interface between officers and Members, including
the development and publication of Forward Work Programmes;
Acting as the principal advisor to elected Members in relation to
scrutiny functions and the Democratic Services Committee;
Designing and delivering effective Member Development
programmes;

Ensuring the efficient and effective running of the democratic,
mayoral and electoral services including acting as a Deputy
Returning Officer;

Ensuring compliance with the Independent Remuneration for
Wales schemes for the remuneration of Elected Members;

The Council’s response to the Welsh Government’s local
government reform agenda and associated policies and strategies
on collaboration and related matters. Deputising for the Chief
Executive at regional and national forums as required;

Developing the work of the Public Services Board in the context of
the well-being assessment and well-being plan and lead the
implementation of work programmes on behalf of the partnership;
Managing the Council’s interface with the Voluntary Sector,
including management of the Compact;

Supporting the Leader of Council in managing the interface with
Town and Community councils;

The co-ordination of the Council’s Valleys Task & Finish Group;
Representing the Council on the Area Planning Board and
ensuring that the Council’s duties related to substance misuse are

discharged,;

Page 15



¢ Income Generation: developing the corporate framework for, and
co-ordination of, cross cutting work in this area;

e Preparing the Corporate Governance Statement on an annual
basis and overseeing the improvement work set out in that
Statement, ensuring adherence to the CIPFA Code of Practice;

e The Capital Programme Steering Group to ensure the delivery of
the agreed capital programme; and

e Leading projects, programme and change initiatives as identified
by Members;

¢ Leading the ICT/Digital Service to enable efficient procurement of
hardware/software; service delivery to staff and the public
including the development of data strategies to assist with
controlling cost/activity; collaborative relationships with Heads of
Service and strong governance in relation to security, data
management, network and systems and third party applications;
and

¢ Line management and budgetary responsibilities for relevant
service areas.

Assistant Chief Executive & Digital Officer Pay Scale 2018-19

Pay Point Salary

£85,500
£87,638
£89,776
£91,913
£94,050

g WIN|F

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 3

ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
Report of the Head of Streetcare — Michael Roberts
15" January 2018
SECTION A - MATTER FOR DECISION

Wards Affected: All

AMENDMENT TO STAFFING STRUCTURE OF HIGHWAYS AND
DRAINAGE SECTION

1 Purpose of the Report

The purpose of this report is to seek Members approve to create
four Streetcare Driving Skilled Operatives (Non HGV) posts (Grade
4 — JEID2996) with effect from 1% April 2018 and delete four
Roadworkers (Grade 3) posts. All posts are within the Drainage
and Highways Section of the Environment Directorate.

2 Background

There are four Roadworkers (Grade 3) with the teams that deal
with reactive highway and drainage repairs. The employees were
previously Modern Apprentices and are now fully trained and
experienced. Given their skills they are now regularly undertaking
more skilled roles and acting up.

To protect the Council’s investment and improve operational
flexibility it is now proposed that the four roadworker posts be
deleted and the four employees occupying these posts be offered
suitable alternative employment as Driving Skilled Operatives (Non
HGV) (Grade 4). This will utilise the skills they have learned
during their employment whilst also contributing to flexibility and
service delivery. Existing and Proposed structures are shown in
Appendix A.

3 Financial Impact

Page 17



Please see Financial Appraisal shown in Appendix B. To meet the
additional maximum budget costs, budget changes are proposed
as follows:

Drainage Day to day budget transfers to staffing budget

General contract work underspend £3,260
Transport underspend £4,000
Streetworks budget transfers to staffing budget

Office equipment £1,000
Additional income from defect fees £8,600
Total £16,860

Equality Impact Assessment

A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the
Council in discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the
Equality Act 2010. After completing the assessment it has been
determined that this proposal does not require an Equalities
Impact Assessment.

Workforce Impact

These changes are in line with the Council's Management of
Change in Partnership Policy and will provide greater flexibility in
the workforce and help with retention of the operational staff the
Council has trained.

Legal Impact
There are no legal impacts associated with this report.
Risk Management

Further to the Council’s investment in them these operatives are
now skilled and if they are not paid as such they may seek
promotional opportunities elsewhere outside the Council.

Consultation

Page 18



10

11

12

13

14

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external
consultation on this item.

Recommendation

It is RECOMMENDED that Members APPROVE the creation of
four Streetcare Driving Skilled Operatives (Non-HGV) (Grade 4 —
JEID2996) with effect from 1% April 2018 and delete four
Roadworkers (Grade 3) posts. All posts are within the Highways
and Drainage Section of the Environment Directorate.

FOR DECISION
Reason for Proposed Decision

To help retain qualified staff that the Council has invested in and to
improve flexibility within the reactive highway maintenance teams

Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for immediate implementation.
Appendices

Existing and Proposed Structures — Appendix A
Financial Appraisal — Appendix B

List of Background Papers

None

Officer Contacts

Steve Owen, Highways and Drainage Services Manager.
Tel: 01639 686304 or email: s.owen@npt.gov.uk

Page 19


mailto:s.owen@npt.gov.uk

0¢ abed

Streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative HGV (Yard
Organiser)

P Kelly (931843)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 2997

| streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative HGV
J Hetherington (936479)
J Hole (920017)
R Jones (920049)
D Williams (570624)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 2997

Senior Streetcare
Supervisor
David Jenkins

Skilled Ganger
Neil Trott (202204)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 870

Machine
Driver/Roadworker
D Jones (458074)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 56

| streetcare Driving Skilled

Operative HGV
R James (451767)
SCP 20-25
JE 1D 2997

Streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative HGV
A Bond (202671)
AN Say (903878)
‘ SCP 20.25
JE 1D 2997

‘ Roadworker

Kieran Hyde
| SCP 11-15
JE ID 1545

! No Driving Licence
J Jetter

Environment Directorate
Operational Employees
November 2017

Driving Skilled Operative
' (HGV)
1. E Floyd (451609)
2. R J Jenkins (451609)
3. KT Adkins (202097)
4. P J Hughes (154570)
‘ J. W Dyer (670592)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 458

1. B Hiller (570988)
2. B Howells (953482)
| 3. C.Walsh(927959)
4. T A Say (202620)!
‘ J. K Wheway (935518)
SCP 15-20
L JE ID 3143

|_ GullyBrainage Operativ:

Appendix A
Existing Structures



T¢ obed

Community Improvement
‘ Team Leader

T HII (907457)
SCP 20-24
| JE ID 2997

[ Streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative Non HGV
' N Griffiths (901230)

SCP 15-20
| JE ID 2996

[ Roadworker
Jordan Owens (948887)
SCP 11-15
JE ID 1545

! No driving licence

|

|

|

Highway Surveyor

Environment Directorate
Operational Employees
November 2017

Paul Thomas

Community Improvement
Team Leader
P Williams (202619)
SCP 20-24
JE ID 2332

[ Streetcare Dnvmg SK:IIed

Operative Non HGV
W Lewis (920077)
SCP 15-20
JE ID 2996

Roadworker

C Hines (947608)
SCP 11-15
JE ID 1545

Community Improvement
Team Leader
\ R Jones (903889)
SCP 20-24
i JE ID 2332 ‘ Streetcare Driving Skilled |
Operative Non HGV
L Roberts (901240)

[ Streetcare Driving Skilled JSé: ﬁ)zzos‘;;
Operative Non HGV 2
| R Ashdown (202613)
SCP 15-20 —_—
| JE ID 2996 Roadworker
i} ‘ P Winters (450793) !
SCP 11-15
L JE ID 2333
' Roadworker
D Davies (948890)
SCP 11-15
I JE ID 1545




z2c abed

Senior Streetcare
Supervisor
David Jenkins

Skilled Ganger
Neil Trott (202204)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 870

Streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative HGV (Yard
Organiser)

P Kelly (931843)

SCP 20-25
JE ID 2997

Streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative HGV
J Hetherington (936479)
J Hole (920017)
R Jones (920049)
D Williams (570624)

SCP 20-25
JE ID 2997

Machine
Driver/Roadworker
D Jones (458074)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 56

‘ Streetcare Driving Skilled ]

Operative HGV
R James (451767)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 2997

Streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative HGV
| A Bond (202671)
AN Say (903878)
SCP 20-25
| JE ID 2997

| streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative (non HGV)
Kieran Hyde
SCP 15-20
JE ID 2996

! No Driving Licence
J Jetter

Appendix A
Proposed Structures

Environment Directorate
Operational Employees
April 2018

Driving Skilled Operative
(HGV)
| 1. E Floyd (451609)
2. R J Jenkins (451609)
3. KT Adkins (202097)
4. P J Hughes (154570)
J. W Dyer (570592)
SCP 20-25
JE ID 458

Gully Drainage Operative
1. B Hiller (670988)
2. B Howells (953482)
3. C. Walsh(927959)
4. T A Say (202620)!
J. K Wheway (935518)
SCP 15-20
JE ID 3143




Community Improvement

Highway Surveyor
Paul Thomas

Community Improvement

| Community Improvement |

Environment Directorate
Operational Employees
April 2018

ez abed

Team Leader Team Leader Team Leader
T HIll (907457) P Williams (202619) R Jones (903889)
SCP 20-24 [ SCP 20-24 SCP 20-24
JE ID 2997 JE ID 2332 JE ID 2332 Streetcare Driving Skilled |
B ‘ Operative Non HGV
L Roberts (901240)
- = = ——y [efractro o o) SCP 20-24
| Streetcare Driving Skilled ‘ Streetcare Driving Skilled Streetcare Driving Skilled ‘ JE ID 2332
Operative Non HGV Operative Non HGV Operative Non HGV -
N Griffiths (901230) W Lewis (920077) R Ashdown (202613)
SCP 15-20 SCP 15-20 SCP 15-20 —_—
JE ID 2996 JE ID 2996 ‘ JE ID 2996 Roadworker
2 P Winters (450793) !
| SCP 11-15
JEID 2333

[ streetcare Driving Skilled
Operative Non HGV

I Streetcare Driving Skilled |

Streetcare Driving Skilled
‘ Operative Non HGV

Operative Non HGV

Jordan Owens (948887) C Hines (947608) D Davies (948890)
SCP 15-20 SCP 15-20 SCP 15-20
| JE ID 2996 | JE 1D 2996 JE ID 2996

! No driving licence



Appendix B

FINANCIAL APPRAISAL

SET UP COSTS

This Year

Costs 2018/19
£

Recruitment Costs

Accommodation Costs

Office Costs

Others

Total Set Up Costs

OO O oo

RECURRING COSTS

This Year Maximum
Costs £°000 £°000
Employee Costs (from Financial Appraisal Statement)
- Starting Salary x 4 93,424 106,956
- Additional cost at Maximum Salary
Accommodation Running Costs
IT Annual Costs
Other Running Costs (Specify)
Total Recurring Costs 93,424 106,956

Funding of Recurring Costs
External Sources

Specific Grant:

- staffing costs

- other

Funding from External Agencies
Service Level Agreement

Other (Specify)

Internal Sources

Existing staff Budget Allocation 4 x grade 3 90,096 90,096
Budget transfers from elsewhere within
Highway and Drainage Services

3,328 16,860
Total Funds Available 93,424 106,956

Page 24



Agenda Item 4

ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
Report of the Head of Streetcare — Michael Roberts
15" January 2018
SECTION A - MATTER FOR DECISION

Wards Affected: All

MINOR STAFFING CHANGES IN THE HIGHWAYS AND DRAINAGE
SERVICE

1 Purpose of the Report

To seek approval for a minor staffing change in the Highways and
Drainage Services Section of the Environment Directorate by
deleting a Grade 3 Operational Support Assistant and creating 2 x
two year Foundation Apprentices.

2 Executive Summary

There is an existing GIS Technician (Grade 4) in Network
Management which is vacant at present. It is proposed to
redeploy the post holder of the Operational Support Assistant post
(Grade 3) to this post as suitable alternative employment. As a
result of the deletion of the Operational Support Assistant (Grade
3) post, it is proposed to create 2 x two year Foundation
Apprentices. The rationale behind this proposal is to ‘grow our
own’ future GIS Technicians, as from past experience, the service
has found it extremely difficult to recruit GIS Technicians. The
employee occupying the Operational Support Assistant (Grade 3)
post has been undertaking GIS training as part of their role.
Please see Appendix A for existing and proposed structures.

3 Background

The GIS Technician has recently given notice of leaving the
Council’s employment and therefore, further to previous training
and succession planning, the proposal to fill the post will ensure
continuity of service and a development opportunity for the

Page 25



employee. By creating 2 x Foundation Apprentice posts, the
section will also further contribute to succession planning whilst
also providing employment opportunities for young people within
the County Borough.

Financial Impact

The financial impact of this change is shown in Appendix B. To
meet the additional cost, budget transfers are proposed as
following:

Drainage day to day budget

Materials budget underspend £2,000
General Contract Work underspend £2,750
Total £4,750

Equality Impact Assessment

A Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the
Council in discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the
Equality Act 2010. After completing the assessment it has been
determined that this proposal does not require an Equalities
Impact Assessment.

Legal Impact
There are no legal impacts associated with this report.
Workforce Impacts

The proposed change will be in line with the Council’s
Management of Change in Partnership Policy and will have a
positive impact on the workforce as it will provide a development
opportunity for one employee and employment for two foundation
apprentices.

Risk Management

GIS Technicians are in short supply and are difficult to recruit. The
proposal is intended to help ensure suitable skills remain available
in house going forward.

Page 26



10.

11.

12

13

14

Consultation

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external
consultation on this item.

Recommendation

It is RECOMMENDED that Members APPROVE the minor staffing
changes in the Highways and Drainage Services Section of the
Environment Directorate by:-

(i) deleting an Operational Support Assistant (Grade 3) post
(i)  creating 2 x. two year Foundation Apprentice posts

FOR DECISION

Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for immediate implementation.
Appendices

Existing and Proposed Structures — Appendix A
Financial Summary — Appendix B

List of Background Papers

None

Officer Contacts

Steve Owen, Highways and Drainage Services Manager.
Tel: 01639 686304 or email: s.owen@npt.gov.uk

Page 27


mailto:s.owen@npt.gov.uk

g¢ obed

Network and Programme Manager
Grade 11 SCP 4347

Environment

Streetcare - Highway & Drainage Services

November 2017

ian Carser
JED 384
T 1
|
4 k4
‘Scnior Assistant Semior Assistant Senior Assistant (Network Highway Asset
serworks) Analysis) anagerment Officer
GRSCP 3136 GRESCP31.36 GRS SCP31.3 36
2800 2843 2487
Gary Thomas Michaci Thomas. Steve Bevn
JE 1D 80 JEID 3816 JEID363
| e

Strectworks Inspectors

GR6 SCP 2

235

JE D 1571

JED742

Enpincsring Support Assistat
GRASCP15-20
David Loft
EDOIST

Operational Support Assistant
ORI SCP 1115

Highways lnspoctors.
3

JEID 1685

—

Enginccring Support Assistant
GRASCP 1

Christing Brown (A
JED9IST

T30 hr)

Operaticnal Support Assistant
GR3ISCP 1115
Nicola Evans (17hrs)

JED3

Assistant Highway Officer

Assistamt

GIS Technician
GR4SCP 15-20
Ceri Rowlands
JE D 2356

JED 3034

Appendix A
Existing Structure




6¢ obed

v

‘Semior Assistant
e

JE 1D 30

an Caner
JE D 3384

twock and Programme Mumsper
Grade 11 5CP 4347

Environment
Streetcare - Highway & Drainage Services
January 2018

|
Y

‘Senice Assistant
(Highways)
GRESCP 3136

‘Stroctworks lnspoctons

GR6 SCP 228

JE ID 1571

Engincering Suppon Assistaat
GR4 SCP15-20
Duvid Lot
JED91ST

Oprational Support Assistant
GR3 SCP 11-15

2803
Abbic Barenbough

ORS SCP 20-25

Steffan Wiliams
JEID 1685

—

Engincering Support Assistan
GRASCP 15-20
Chrisine Browa (M-T 30 brs)
E9IsT

o

Operasioral Support Assstant
a

T
!
Y

Senice Assistant (Network
Anaysis)
GRESCP 3136
243

242
Michacl Thomas.
JEID 3816

imy Curtis
JEID 3515

Survey Teun Co-Ordimaior
GRS SCP 2025

Assistant Fighway Officer

Dun Kirkwood
JE D 3632

Nick Waters
JED 6

Foundation
Appeen

tice

OIS Tochnicim

Appendix A
Proposed Structure




FINANCIAL APPRAISAL

SET UP COSTS

Appendix B

Ith

Costs

Recruitment Costs
Accommodation Costs
Office Costs

Others

Total Set Up Costs

OO O oo

RECURRING COSTS

This Year

Costs £°000
Employee Costs
- Foundation Apprentice x 2 26,170(*)

Accommodation Running Costs

IT Annual Costs

Other Running Costs (Specify)

Total Recurring Costs 26,170

(* 2 year fixed term contracts with payment of a weekly training allowance leading to an NVQ Level 2 qualification. A
decision will then need to be taken whether to progress to a full apprenticeship and NVQ Level 3 qualification. The exact

amount may vary a little dependent upon age and the applicable National Living wage)

Funding of Recurring Costs
External Sources

Specific Grant:

- staffing costs

- other

Funding from External Agencies
Service Level Agreement

Other (Specify)

Internal Sources

Vacant Operational Support Assistant 21,420
Budget transfer from elsewhere within Highways

and Drainage Services budget 4,750
Total Funds Available 26,170

Page 30




Agenda Iltem 5

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Personnel Committee
15 January, 2018

Report of the Head of the Director of Social Services, Health
and Housing
Matter for Information
Wards Affected: All

Officer Urgency Action: 0416

Re: Interim Management arrangements in Social Services, Health and
Housing

Details of the above Urgency Action taken by the Head of the Director of
Social Services, Health and Housing in consultation with the requisite
Members, for immediate implementation.

There is no call-in of this matter.

Page 31



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES HEALTH &
HOUSING

Matter for decision
WARD(S) AFFECTED: All

INTERIM MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS IN SOCIAL SERVICES,
HEALTH & HOUSING

1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to establish appropriate interim
arrangements to cover the work of vacant post of Head of Social Work
Services pending external permanent recruitment.

2. Background information

Following the promotion of the incumbent post holder, the Head of
Social Work Services post became vacant w.e.f. 5" December 2017.
Members at Personnel Committee on 15" January 2018 will be asked to
approve a proposal to advertise this vacant post, for external
advertisement, and to appoint on a permanent basis to this very
important role.

At this level, it can take between three to six months to fill a vacant post,
depending on the notice period of the successful candidate, and
therefore, and in order to ensure appropriate management
arrangements are in place within Social Services, Health & Housing, an
interim arrangement is proposed.

3. Proposed interim arrangement
It is proposed to seek expressions of interest from Principal Officers

within SSHH, to cover the work of the Head of Social Work Services
post using acting up arrangements. It is proposed that two officers will

Page 32



jointly cover the work, one covering the Adults social work teams, and
one covering the CYP social work teams.

The acting up allowance will be the difference between the appointed
officers’ current salaries and the bottom point of the HOS scale £71,213,
split between the two officers. The market supplement which applies to
the Head of Social Work Services post will not apply to the acting up
opportunity.

The acting up period will cease on commencement in post of the
appointed Head of Social Work Services.

There is an urgency to ensure that acting up arrangements can be in
place by mid-January at the latest, in which case the Director needs to
seek expressions of interest now rather than wait until post Personnel
Committee on 15" January 2018.

The Director wishes to seek delegated authority from Members to
consider expressions of interest received and to appoint two officers to

cover the work of the Head of Social Services via acting up
arrangements.

4. Financial Impact

This proposal will be cost neutral, and will be funded from the budget
allocated for the vacant Head of Social Work services. A financial
appraisal is attached at Appendix A.

5. Equality Impact Assessment

There are no equality impacts associated with this report.

6. Workforce Impacts

This will have a positive impact on the workforce, ensuring that
appropriate interim management arrangements are in place, and
creating a developmental opportunity for two principal officers to gain
invaluable acting up experience.

7. Legal impacts

There are no legal impacts.

Page 33



8. Risk Management
There are no significant risks associated with this report.
9. Consultation

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation
on this item.

10. Recommendation

To delegate authority to the Director of Social Services, Health &
Housing to seek expressions of interest from Principal Officers within
SSHH, for two officers to jointly cover the work of the vacant Head of
Social Work Services post on an acting up basis, splitting the work
between Adults and CYP and splitting the acting up allowance between
both officers. The acting up arrangements to cease on appointment of a
permanent post holder.

11. Officer contact

Andrew Jarrett, Director of Social Services, Health & Housing, email:
a.jarrett@npt.qov.uk, telephone: 01639 763327.

12. Appendices
Appendix A — financial appraisal
13. List of Background Papers

None

Page 34


mailto:a.jarrett@npt.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Senior Management Arrangements
	3 Amendment to Staffing Structure of Highways and Drainage Section
	4 Minor Staffing Changes in the Highways and Drainage Service
	5 Urgency Action 0416 - Interim Management Arrangements in Social Services, Health and Housing
	8 Creation of Permanent Grade 8 Training Officer
	EIA screening Lynne Doyle
	Financial Appraisal Corp Training

	9 Local Government Pay 2018 / 2019 Update
	Local Government Pay Update 2018 2019 APPENDIX 1

	10 Proposal to introduce Job Evaluation to all employees within the Council
	EIA screening JE
	Copy of Chief Officers 2016 and 2017 award 1%
	No205-JNC-Youth-Community-Workers-Pay-Agreement-2016-2017
	no206-soulbury-pay-for-2016-and-2017


